
Williamsburg Township Board of Trustees Minutes 

December 16, 2024 
 

The Williamsburg Township Board of Trustees met on Monday, December 16, 2024 to transact business.  Mr. Jordan called 

the meeting to order at 7:00 p.m., and all joined in the Pledge of Allegiance to the Flag.  Gary Jordan, Guy Bainum and Bari 

Henning answered the roll call.  Also present were Fiscal Officer Doug Lefferson, Maintenance Supervisor/Zoning 

Administrator Brian Tatman, Emergency Services Chief Jason McCarthy, Jody Wilson, and Ed Boll, Jr. 

  

Mr. Henning motioned to approve the minutes of the November 25, 2024 regular meeting.  Mr. Bainum second.  All yeas.  

Mr. Bainum motioned to approve the minutes of the December 5, 2024 special meeting.  Mr. Henning second.  All yeas,  

 

Mr. Jordan turned the meeting over to Fiscal Officer Lefferson for some updates.  Mr. Lefferson requested approval to amend 

appropriations by $6,317.81 in order to authorize the expenditure of the remaining American Rescue Plan Act funds prior to 

year end.  Mr. Jordan motioned to approve Resolution No. 2024-23 to amend appropriations by increasing the appropriated 

amount in Fund 2272 American Rescue Plan Act of 2021 by an additional $6,317.81.  Mr. Henning second.  All yeas.   Mr. 

Lefferson requested to amend appropriations for anticipated additional healthcare costs.  Mr. Bainum motioned to approve 

Resolution No. 2024-24 to amend appropriations by increasing the appropriated amounts in Fund 1000 General, Insurance 

and Bonding account by an additional $10,000 and Fund Fire and EMS 2022 Levy, Insurance and Bonding by an additional 

$15,000.  Mr. Jordan second.  All yeas.  Mr. Lefferson reported he participated in a 3-hour Public Records Training course 

through the Auditor of State on December 10th, indicating he was also registered as a designee for all the Trustees.  Mr. 

Lefferson provided an update on the information technology migration to the cloud.  He indicated it has been a lot of work 

but is expected to be completed by year end.  The project has created some business interruption for the Fiscal Officer, 

Emergency Services Chief, and the Maintenance Supervisor/Zoning Administrator. 

 

Mr. Lefferson presented a financial report, including a comprehensive account of expenditures and receipts, an appropriation 

status report indicating year-to-date expenditures by account, and a revenue status report comparing budgeted revenue to 

actual received, and the Trustees accepted it.   

 

Mr. Henning motioned to approve the attached bills.  Mr. Bainum second.  All yeas. 

 

Cemetery and Maintenance Report 

Mr. Tatman provided a report.  He gave an update on phase 2 of the Maintenance Building, indicating the electrician is 

working this week and next on wiring.  The trench for gas and electricity should be done this week.  Plumbing will follow, 

materials are ordered and will start at the end of December or the beginning of January.  Mr. Tatman reported the F550 is 

getting a new oil pan at Williamsburg Auto and Truck and should be completed by the end of this week. He said he planned 

on getting some pricing and checking to see how long it takes to build a new F550 when he attends the Winter Conference 

(Ohio Township Association).  Mr. Tatman said the Maintenance team put a new oil pan on the International 7400 last week.  

They could accomplish this in-house as that vehicle had more room for work and did not have to be raised.  Mr. Tatman 

indicated that Mr. Scott in Maintenance was off until January 20, 2025, and that Mr. Bennett was still working in 

Maintenance and helping greatly.  Mr. Tatman said the large pine tree came down in Concord Cemetery and they will be 

working to clean it up.  He indicated it does not look like any headstones were damaged, but he will not know for sure until 

he looks at it closer.  Mr. Jordan asked if the Township should consider hiring Anstaett Tree Service given the size of the tree 

and the work involved in cleanup and removal.  Mr. Tatman said he would contact them tomorrow and get a price.  Mr. 

Jordan said he appreciated Mr. Tatman taking a look at it because several residents have called.  Mr. Tatman indicated he was 

looking at a headache rack to mount the light bar for the Dodge Ram 2500.  He said a new back rack headache rack and 

mount to the utility box is $373.81.  The Trustees agreed this was a good idea.  Mr. Henning motioned to purchase a 

headache rack to mount the light bar for the Dodge Ram 2500 for $373.81.  Mr. Bainum second.  All yeas.  Mr. Jordan 

discussed a road issue at Bootjack Road and SR 133.  He stated he spoke with ODOT (Ohio Department of Transportation) 

and was also working with Chief McCarthy.  Mr. Jordan indicated there was a washboard surface on SR 133 and trucks were 

losing sand and gravel.  He said ODOT indicated they were going to try to elevate that part of the road and re-surface it.  

ODOT indicated this would potentially happen in the spring and the road may need to be closed for two or three days.  Mr. 

Jordan said several letters were sent (in prior years) to the Governor regarding a bridge or overpass at McKeever Road and 

SR 32 with a connector to Dela Palma Road.  Mr. Jordan said in speaking with Doug Gruver, Highway Management 

Administrator, ODOT District 8, he indicated a better approach may be contacting ODOT directly.  Mr. Jordan provided an 

update on another topic discussed with ODOT.  In regard to vendors at Dela Palma Road and McKeever Road and SR 32, the 

State does not support them being there.  ODOT is not as concerned if they are back off of SR 32 at least 40 feet.  Mr. Jordan 

referenced Sections 5515.01, 5515.02, and 5515.03 of the Ohio Revised Code that ODOT had provided which could be 

utilized in notices to vendors.  These Sections state that items or vehicles parked on Ohio State/US Routes without the 

express permission of ODOT is criminal trespass.  Mr. Tatman requested a copy of the ODOT information.  Mr. Jordan said 

we could not use the sample letter that ODOT sends but could use a form of it.  Mr. Jordan said ODOT did not want to use 

Highway Patrol or Sheriff resources on vendor issues.  In regard to Township Cemeteries, Mr. Jordan asked the Trustees if 

they had any questions, comments, or concerns with the pricing recommendations supplied by Cemetery Sexton Tatman at 

the December 5, 2024 Special Meeting.  Mr. Henning said the deed transfer fee needed to be updated on the fee schedule to 

reflect the new pricing.  Mr. Tatman agreed and said he would update the schedule.  Mr. Henning motioned to approve the 

updated cemetery fee schedule effective January 1, 2025.  Mr. Bainum second.  All yeas. 

 

Zoning Report 

Mr. Tatman provided an update on Zoning Commission and Board of Appeals members.  In regard to the Zoning 

Commission, he stated that the term for Don Frodge expires December 31, 2024 and the term for alternate Rick Healey 

expires December 31, 2024. Mr. Tatman said both agreed to serve another term.  Mr. Jordan motioned to appoint Don Frodge 

to the Zoning Commission for a term expiring December 31, 2029 and Rick Healey as an alternate to the Zoning 

Commission for a term expiring December 31, 2026.  Mr. Henning second.  All yeas.  In regard to the Zoning Board of 

Appeals, Mr. Tatman stated that the term for Virgil Burroughs expires December 31, 2024 and the term for alternate Kevin 

Thomas expires December 31, 2024.  Mr. Tatman said both agreed to serve another term.  Mr. Henning motioned to appoint 

Virgil Burroughs to the Zoning Board of Appeals for a term expiring December 31, 2029 and Kevin Thomas as an alternate 

to the Zoning Board of Appeals for a term expiring December 31, 2026.  Mr. Bainum second.  All yeas.  Mr. Tatman 

discussed updating the zoning book binders based on recent changes.  After discussion with the Trustees, it was determined 

to produce new zoning books and load the information on a thumb drive as well for Zoning Commission members, Board of  

 



Williamsburg Township Board of Trustees Minutes 

December 16, 2024 
 

Appeals members, and Trustees.  Mr. Tatman pointed out that the camper had been removed from the Township Hall parking 

lot as promised by the owner. 

 

Emergency Services Report 

Chief McCarthy provided a report.  There were 35 fire and 86 EMS calls for the month of November.  Chief McCarthy said 

the Department participated in Career Day at the Elementary School and the Christmas Walk in the Village.  Chief McCarthy 

provided an update on the potential purchase of a used ladder truck from Genoa Township.  He has been working with our 

legal counsel on all the proper documentation.  He indicated the truck could be available in the middle of January.  Chief 

McCarthy recommended proceeding with the purchase of the used ladder truck from Genoa Township ($375,000.00).  There 

was also discussion about the sale of the Township’s 2003 McCoy Miller ambulance that is no longer in service.  Mr. 

Bainum motioned to approve Resolution No. 2024-25 authorizing the sale of the Township’s 2003 McCoy Miller ambulance 

pursuant to Ohio Revised Code Section 505.10.  Mr. Jordan second.  All yeas.  Mr. Henning motioned to approve Resolution 

No. 2024-26 authorizing the purchase of a Sutphen SPH100 fire apparatus from Genoa Township, Delaware County, Ohio 

pursuant to Ohio Revised Code Section 505.101.  Mr. Jordan second.  All yeas.   

 

Chairperson Jordan turned the meeting over to the Fiscal Officer Doug Lefferson to take nominations for Chairman for next 

year.  Mr. Jordan nominated Mr. Bainum for Chairperson.  Mr. Henning second.  Mr. Lefferson closed the nominations 

hearing no further motions.  All yeas.   

 

Mr. Lefferson asked for nominations for Vice Chairperson.  Mr. Bainum motioned to nominate Mr. Henning for Vice 

Chairperson.  Mr. Jordan second.  Mr. Lefferson closed the nominations hearing no further motions.  All yeas.  Mr. Lefferson 

turned the meeting back over to current Chairman Jordan. 

 

Mr. Henning motioned to re-appoint Brian Tatman as Cemetery Sexton & Road Maintenance Supervisor/Zoning 

Administrator with a salary of $68,000.  Mr. Jordan second.  All yeas. 

Mr. Jordan motioned to re-appoint Jason P. McCarthy as Emergency Services Chief with a salary of $86,000.  Mr. Bainum          

second.  All yeas. 

Mr. Bainum motioned to give all other employees, not covered in the motions just passed, a 3.0 % raise.  Mr. Henning         

second.  All yeas. 

Mr. Henning motioned to pay all EMS and fire volunteers $20.00/run. Mr. Jordan second.  All yeas.  Mr. Jordan          

motioned to pay Cadets $10.00/run.  Mr. Henning second.  All yeas.  

Mr. Bainum motioned to pay all Zoning Commission and Zoning Board of Appeals members $55.00/meeting.  Mr. Jordan 

second.  All yeas. 

Mr. Henning motioned to pay the Trustees and Fiscal Officer the maximum compensation allowed per ORC and to pay in 12 

equal installments and to allocate across departments as allowed per ORC if necessary.  

 Mr. Bainum second.  All yeas. 

Mr. Jordan motioned to pay the Emergency Services Chief, Cemetery Sexton/Zoning Administrator, Trustees and Fiscal 

Officer’s expenses to both the winter and summer conferences if they decide to attend.  Mr. Henning second.  All yeas. 

Mr. Bainum motioned to pay the IRS rate/mile for personal automobile use on township business.  Mr. Jordan second.  All 

yeas. 

Mr. Henning motioned to pay $55.00/day without receipts for meals at any conference or out of town trip on township 

business.  Mr. Bainum second.  All yeas. 

Mr. Jordan motioned to pay $225.00 for Memorial Day expenses.  Mr. Bainum second.  All yeas. 

Mr. Bainum motioned to continue to provide health, dental, & vision for all eligible employees and elected officials and to 

continue to fund the HRA.  Mr. Henning second.  All yeas.   

Mr. Henning motioned to pay the Fiscal Officer and Trustee’s state and local township association dues.  Mr. Bainum 

second.  All yeas. 

Mr. Jordan motioned to appoint the chairperson and vice-chairperson to the Fire Dependency Board.  Mr. Henning second.  

All yeas. 

Mr. Bainum motioned to set 2025 meeting dates as the second and fourth Monday of each month at 7:00 p.m., with only one 

December Meeting to be held on the 15th and moving the regularly scheduled meeting on Memorial Day to Tuesday, May 

27th.  Mr. Jordan second.  All yeas. 

Mr. Henning motioned to set the 2025 temporary budget equal to approximately 25% of the current 2024 budget.  Mr. Jordan             

second.  All yeas. 

 

Public Participation 

Mr. Jordan opened the meeting up for public participation. Mr. Boll asked about the bridge information that Mr. Jordan spoke 

of earlier in the meeting.  Mr. Boll indicated he attended a County transportation meeting Friday and 10 of the projects 

discussed were bridges. Mr. Jordan said that ODOT indicated bridge work is scheduled for the Half Acre overpass in 2029.  

Mr. Lefferson said ODOT uses the term bridge when referring to overpasses.  Mr. Henning said in his opinion there have 

been great road upgrades through Eastgate.  Access roads to bring Dela Palma and McKeever Roads to one interchange is 

likely part of the long-term plan.  He indicated keeping that at the forefront of the decision makers was important.  The new 

interchange in Mt. Orab was discussed, but it was pointed out that that is in a different ODOT district.  Mr. Boll stated the 

Herold Road crossing of SR 32 is dangerous.  Mr. Henning said we are all with you on agreeing with that.  He indicated that 

there are future plans to likely create another overpass and access roads involving Bauer Road and Herold Road.  Mr. Jordan 

said regarding Township roads that cross SR 32 he has talked with Chief McCarthy about the level of accidents.  He 

indicated he was just trying to elevate the concern for the benefit of Township residents.  Mr. Jordan said it had probably 

been 15 plus years ago that there was discussion on shutting down the McKeever Road SR 32 crossing, but there needs to be 

a safe way for schools and Emergency Services to access that part of the community.  He has a concern about the planning 

time and the number of years out before inclusion in the State budget.  Mr. Henning said the ultimate 32 corridor plan is to 

eliminate roads that cross through SR 32. 

 

Mr. Jordan wished everyone and all residents a Merry Christmas and a Happy New Year.    

 

 

 



Williamsburg Township Board of Trustees Minutes 

December 16, 2024 
 

 

There being no further business, Mr. Bainum motioned to adjourn at approximately 7:47 p.m.  Mr. Henning second.  All 

yeas. 

 

 

 

 

 

 
___________________________________  ___________________________________ 

Fiscal Officer     Chairperson    


